
 

Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

Town Hall Council Chambers 
Tuesday, March 5, 2019, 6:00pm 

 
Agenda 

 
1. Call to Order – Chairman Doug Theroux. 

• Recognition of Acting Chair 
2. Approval of the Agenda. 
3. Approval of the Minutes from the January 3, 2019 Meeting of the Board. 
4. Discussion Related to a Proposed Zoning Map Amendment for Five Parcels of Land Located 

Adjacent to Red Cole Drive.   
5. Consideration of a Motion Establishing a Recommendation to Town Council Related to the 

Aforementioned Proposed Zoning Map Amendment. 
6. Discussion Related to an Application for a Conditional Zoning District on the Property Commonly 

Known as 37 Brown Street  
7. Consideration of a Motion Establishing a Recommendation to Town Council on the 

Aforementioned Initial Zoning Request. 
8. Update on the Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 
9. Any Other Business to Come Before the Board. 

• 135 Monticello Road Briefing  
10. Adjournment. 



 

Agenda Item 3 
Minutes 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 
Page 1 of 3  January 3, 2019 
  Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 
 

 

Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

Minutes – Thursday, January 3, 2019 
 

 
The Planning and Zoning Board of the Town of Weaverville met for a regularly scheduled monthly 
meeting at 6:00pm on Thursday, January 3, 2019 within the Council Chambers at Town Hall. 

Present: Chairman Doug Theroux, Vice-Chairman Gary Burge, Board Members Catherine Cordell, 
Peter Stanz and Steve Warren, Alternate Board Members John Chase and Tom Balestrieri, Town 
Attorney Jennifer Jackson and Planning Director James Eller.  

1. Call to Order. 

Chairman Doug Theroux called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. Upon calling the meeting to order, 
Chairman Theroux recognized Vice-Chairman Burge who would be serving as the acting chair for the 
meeting. 

Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson administered the Oath of Office to Tom Balestrieri who had recently 
been appointed to an alternate position on the Board by Town Council. 

2. Approval of the Agenda. 

Mr. Stanz motioned to approve the agenda as presented. Mr. Warren seconded and all voted 
unanimously. 

3. Approval of the Minutes from the December 6, 2018 Meeting of the Board. 

Mr. Theroux motioned to approve the minutes as amended. Said amendments were related to 
typographical errors found on page 3 of the aforementioned minutes. Mr. Warren seconded and all 
voted unanimously. 

4. Discussion Related to a Proposed Text Amendment Regarding the Method Via Which 
Multifamily Residential Uses are Permitted and Additional Standards Crafted at the 
Direction of the Board.  

Mr. Eller recapped the conversation which occurred during the last meeting including the consensus 
which was gained to transition the use of multifamily residential to be permitted with standards within 
the R-3 and R-12 Zoning Districts. 

Mr. Theroux noted that the same revision is to be made for multifamily residential use of more than 
four units within the R-3 zoning district. Mr. Eller felt that the same standards would apply to the R-3 
zoning district as well which permits multifamily residential uses at a lower density. No objection to 
this occurrence was noted. 



 
Page 2 of 3  January 3, 2019 
  Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 
 

Mr. Eller reviewed the standards which had been crafted which included language related to sidewalk 
requirements, traffic impact analysis, street lighting, off street parking, noise, containment devices for 
garbage and the bulk of structures.  

Ms. Jackson noted that many of these variables were covered in other areas of ordinance and suggested 
an inclusionary statement applicable to all additional standards would be a more efficient way to note 
these circumstances.    

Mr. Eller sought guidance from the Board on two standards related to outdoor lighting and bulk of 
structures where said standards had been framed but not finalized. Consensus was gained to set a 
height limitation of 16 feet on freestanding outdoor lighting. Consensus was gained to set a limitation 
of no more than 24 units per structure. 

5. Consideration of a Motion Establishing a Recommendation to Town Council Related to the 
Aforementioned Text Amendment. 

Mr. Warren motioned to recommend to Town Council the text amendments related to the permitting of 
multifamily residential uses within the R-3 and R-12 Zoning Districts and the additional standards 
applied thereto finding said amendments do not conflict with the Town’s comprehensive land use plan 
and the proposed approval by Town Council reasonable and in the public interest that such 
amendments provide stated standards for such development and a more efficient review process. Ms. 
Cordell seconded and all voted unanimously. 

6. Discussion Related to the Initial Zoning Request of R-2 by Cane Creek Vistas, LLC for a 
Project on Wheeler Road Submitted to the Town in Conjunction with a Voluntary 
Annexation Petition Made Requisite by a Water Allocation. 

A lengthy conversation occurred related to the history and evolution of the project on Wheeler Road 
which achieved project approval within Buncombe County jurisdiction with a water allocation from 
the Town conditioned upon the project being voluntarily annexed into municipal borders. 

Mr. Eller and Ms. Jackson informed the Board that the task at hand was related to the initial zoning of 
the property and that matters related to the proposed annexation would be heard exclusively by Town 
Council. 

Concerns from individual Board members were heard related to nonconformities created by the 
application of any municipal zoning to the property, annexation, water allocations, vested rights and 
the size of the lots and proposed structures. 

7. Consideration of a Motion Establishing a Recommendation to Town Council Related to the 
Aforementioned Initial Zoning Request. 

Mr. Warren motioned that if Town Council must annex the property then the P&Z recommends R-2 as 
the initial zoning for the property based upon staff recommendation and the contents therein as R-2 is 
more appropriate than any other zoning district. Mr. Burge seconded and the motion failed with a vote 
of two in favor and three against. 



 
Page 3 of 3  January 3, 2019 
  Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 
 

Mr. Stanz motioned to table the matter. Motioned failed from lack of a second. 

Mr. Warren motioned that should Town Council annex the property the P&Z sends a favorable 
recommendation for R-2 Zoning on the property as it is consistent with the comprehensive land use 
plan and strategic plan and R-2 is the most appropriate zoning district for an unimproved property at 
this location. Ms. Cordell seconded. This motion carried by a 3 to 2 vote with Mr. Warren, Ms. Cordell 
and Mr. Burge voting in favor of the motion. Mr. Theroux and Mr. Stanz cast the dissenting votes.  

8. Any Other Business to Come Before the Board. 

Mr. Eller provided the Board with an updated roster reflective of Mr. Balestrieri’s appointment. 

Mr. Eller provided the Board with the approved 2019 schedule of meetings. 

Ms. Jackson noted that a joint meeting of Town Council and the Planning and Zoning Board will be 
held on Tuesday, February 12, 2019 at 6pm for the purpose of discussing the update of the 
comprehensive land use plan and the role of the Planning and Zoning Board. 

Mr. Eller noted that staff had participated in a meeting with NCDOT in which it was revealed that 
plans previously distributed to the Board related to the New Stock interchange had been withdrawn in 
favor of being included in the I-26 widening project. 

9. Adjournment. 
 
Ms. Cordell motioned to adjourn. Mr. Stanz seconded and all voted unanimously. 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Doug Theroux, Chairman 
Planning and Zoning Board 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 
James W. Eller 
Planning Director / Deputy Town Clerk 
 



 

Agenda Items 4&5 
Proposed Red Cole Drive Rezoning 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 









Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Proposed Rezoning of 
Parcels Located on Red Cole Drive 

Prepared February 2019 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

Page 1 of 1 

Zoning Analysis 

Currently two of the parcels subjects to the proposed rezoning are being used for residential purposes 
within the C-2 zoning district. This creates a scenario where the current homes on site are being 
inhabited by a nonconforming use. As such, these uses experience some difficulties related to 
nonconformities and new residential uses on the parcels which are currently uninhabited are expressly 
prohibited.  

The family has expressed a desire to continue the residential use of the inhabited parcels and 
experience a set of circumstances where the uninhabited parcels may be used for residential purposes. 
In order for this to occur, the proposed rezoning is necessary.  

Staff believes that the identified parcels at the end of Red Cole Drive may be ripe for a rezoning due to 
the following variables: accessed by a private dead end street; the condition of Red Cole Drive is not 
conducive to commercial traffic; the location of the intersection of Red Cole Drive and North Buncombe 
School Road is likely to not be eligible for signalization due to its proximity to the “five points” 
intersection; the nonconforming nature of the underlying residential uses significantly limit the 
replacement of the present use. 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Compliance 

When considering compliance with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), often the analysis 
begins with a consultation of the future land use map (Figure 3-6 on page 3-5). Here it is found that this 
property exists in a gap between the defined areas shown for the future uses of Commercial and Rural. 
These gaps are intentional and are addressed within the CLUP on page 3-2 as follows: 

“When reviewing the map, you will see that there are gaps between defined areas, and that the defined 
areas do not necessarily follow property boundaries. This is purposeful given the uncertainties that exist 
on the ground that cannot be accounted for, and in recognition of the need for flexibility. And so, the 
boundaries and gaps should be viewed as flexible rather than lines in the sand, and the final decisions on 
transitional land use types in these areas should be left to the good judgement of the appointed and 
elected officials that are charged with establishing development policy and regulations in the Town.” 

Given the aforementioned statement, it is the opinion of staff that the proposed rezoning would not 
conflict with the Town’s CLUP. 



Agenda Items 6&7 
37 Brown CZD (Old College Dormitory) 

* Photographs of surrounding properties as called for by the CZD application will be made available at the
meeting should the Board wish to review.













1
A1

F I R S T   F L O O R   P L A N
SCALE:   1/4" = 1'-0"

KING

QUEEN

KING

QUEEN

KING

TV

W/D

W/DW

QUEEN

TV

TV TV

DWDW

DWWD

TV

QUEEN

DW
DW

QUEEN

Unit 101
858 SF

Unit 102
856 SF

TV

Unit 104nit 
388 SFF

Unit 106
477 SF

Unit 103Unit 103Unit 103Unit 103Unit 103
365 SF

Unit 105
350 SF

12'-6" - 50' MAX DEAD END

15
'-2

" -
 5

0
' M

A
X 

DE
A

D 
EN

D

TWO EXITS FROM FIRST
FLOOR IF MORE THAN 10 OCC
AND 75' OF TRAVEL
DISTANCE - IBC 1021

HORIZONTAL FLOOR ASSEMBLIES
SHALL BE 1 HOUR RATED - IBC 712.3
(CHECK ON STC RATINGS)

NO ELEVATOR REQUIRED -
IBC 1107.2.1

EXIT FROM SECOND FLOOR TO EXTERIOR

TENANT SEPARATION SHALL BE
1  HOUR RATED - IBC 709.3 EX2
(CHECK STC RATINGS)

1 HOUR RATED VERTICAL SHAFT, EXTEND
TO UNDERSIDE OF ROOF DECK - IBC

708.5 AND 707.5

NFPA 13R SPRINKLER SYSTEM SHALL
BE PROVIDED THROUGHOUT THE
ENTIRE BUILDING - IBC 903.2.8 AND
903.3.1.2

ALL CORRIDOR DOORS AND
FRAMES SHALL BE 20M
RATED - IBC TABLE 715.4

ALL STAIR SHAFT DOORS
AND FRAMES SHALL BE 60M

RATED - IBC TABLE 715.4

Corridor
1  HOUR RATED - IBC 1018

Living / Dining
13'8 x 15'3

Living / KitchenLiv
12'0 x 14'02'0 x

Living / Kitchenng / Kitchen
12'4 x 14'0

Living / KitchenLivin
12'0 x 19'60 x 19

BathBathBathBath

Bath

Bath

Bath

Bath

Bath

Bath
Bedroom #2

12'0 x 11'0

Bedroom #1
11'0 x 14'0

Bedroom
9'8 x 9'7

Bedroom
9'8 x 9'7

Bedroom
12'0 x 12'0+

Bedroom
10'0 x 9'0

Mech

Mech

Coat

Closet

Closet

ClosetClosetClosetCloset
ClosetClosetClosetCloset

Closet

Closet

Closet

MAIL BOXES

KitchenKitchenKitchenKitchenKitchenKitchenKitchenKitchenKitchen
13'8 x 9'6

Living / Dining
13'8 x 15'3

Bedroom #2#2
12'0 x 11'0

Bedroom #1
11'0 x 14'0

Living / Kitchen
12'0 x 19'6

DWDW

Kitchen
13'8 x 9'613 8 x 9 613 8 x 9 613 8 x 9 613 8 x 9 613 8 x 9 613 8 x 9 613 8 x 9 613 8 x 9 613 8 x 9 6

TV

TV

TV

TV

TV

TV

TV

TV

Mech

Mech

Coat Closet Mech

48'-0" - 50' MAX DEAD END

Bath

EXISTING DOORS TO REMAIN,
SHUT AND LOCK, DRYWALL
OVER DOOR ON INTERIOR SIDE

NEW METAL FIRE ESCAPE
ABOVE

N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

W
 E

 A
 V

 E
 R

   
B 

U
 I 

L 
D

 I 
N

 G
   

A 
P 

A 
R

 T
 M

 E
 N

 T
 S

83
 E

ve
ly

n 
Pl

ac
e

As
he

vi
lle

, N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

28
80

1

SD SET:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

PROJECT NUMBER:

18-088

12.20.18

© COPYRIGHT 2018
WILSON ARCHITECTS

30
9 

ke
ni

lw
or

th
 ro

ad
, a

sh
ev

ille
, n

c 
28

80
3 

|  
82

8.
25

7.
49

30

SITE PLAN



1
A2

S E C O N D   F L O O R   P L A N
SCALE:   1/4" = 1'-0"

TV

TV

QUEEN

DW
DW

QUEENEEN

Unit 205Unit 205Unit 205Unit 205Unit 205
373 SF

Unit 207
361 SF

Living / KitchenLivi
12'4 x 14'62'4 x 

Living / Kitchenng / Kitchen
12'4 x 14'6

BathBathBathBath
Bath

Bedroom
9'8 x 10'0

Bedroom
9'8 x 9'7

Mech

Mech

Closet

Closet

TV

TV

TV

QUEEN

DW
DW

QUEEN

Unit 201Unit 201Unit 201Unit 201Unit 201
403 SF

Unit 203
359 SF

Living / KitchenLivin
12'0 x 14'60 x 14

Living / Kitchenng / Kitchen
12'7 x 15'6

BathBathBathBath
Bath

Bedroom
10'0 x 10'1010 0 x 10 1010 0 x 10 1010 0 x 10 10

Bedroom
10'0 x 9'7

Mech

Mech

Closet

Closet

TV

TV

TV
DW

DW

BathBathBathBath
Bath

Mech

Mech

Closet

Closet

TV

QUEEN

QUEEN

Unit 204Unit 204Unit 204Unit 204
359 SF35

Unit 202
403 SF403 SF403 SF403 SF

TV

TV TV

KING

QUEEN

TV TV

DWWDW

Unit 206it 2
395 SFF

Unit 208
492 SF

Living / KitchenLivin
12'0 x 19'100 x 19

Bath

Bath

Bedroom
12'4x 12'4+

Bedroom
10'0 x 9'4

Closet

Closet

Living / Kitchen
12'0 x 19'6

TV

TV

Mech

Living / Kitcheng / Kit
12'0 x 14'6

Living / KitchenKitchen
12'7 x 15'6

BedroomBedroom
10'0 x 9'7

Bedroom
10'0 x 10'1010 0

38'-4" - 50' MAX DEAD END EXISTING DOORS TO REMAIN,
SHUT AND LOCK, DRYWALL
OVER DOOR ON INTERIOR SIDE

NEW DOUBLE DOOR IN
EXISTING WINDOW OPENING

NEW METAL FIRE ESCAPE

N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

W
 E

 A
 V

 E
 R

   
B 

U
 I 

L 
D

 I 
N

 G
   

A 
P 

A 
R

 T
 M

 E
 N

 T
 S

83
 E

ve
ly

n 
Pl

ac
e

As
he

vi
lle

, N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

28
80

1

SD SET:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

PROJECT NUMBER:

18-088

12.20.18

© COPYRIGHT 2018
WILSON ARCHITECTS

30
9 

ke
ni

lw
or

th
 ro

ad
, a

sh
ev

ille
, n

c 
28

80
3 

|  
82

8.
25

7.
49

30

FLOOR PLANS



1
A3

A T T I C   F L O O R   P L A N
SCALE:   1/4" = 1'-0"

W
D

QUEEN

QQUEENQQ

W
D

Bath

TV

TV
TV

TV

Closet

Closet

MechDW

DW

Coat

Coat

Mech

PantryPan

Unit 301
827 SF82

Unit 302
836 SF

KitchenKi
9'0 x 12'812'8

Living / Dining
14'0 x 19'0

Laundry

Bedroom
11'3 x 13'6

Bedroom
11'3 x 13'6

Living / Dining
25'0 x 14'0

Kitchen
13'6 x 8'06 x 8'0

Laundrydry

Bath

Corridor
1  HOUR RATED - IBC 1018

ONE EXIT FROM ATTIC FLOOR WITH 4
DWELLING UNIT MAX AND 50' TRAVEL
DISTANCE - IBC 1021 - MIGHT NEED
EGRESS WINDOWS FROM BEDROOMS
ON THIRD FLOOR WITH ONE EXIT

NFPA 13R SPRINKLER SYSTEM SHALL
BE PROVIDED THROUGHOUT THE
ENTIRE BUILDING - IBC 903.2.8 AND
903.3.1.2

NEW STAIR FROM SECOND FLOOR TO
ATTIC

Common Sitting

N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N

W
 E

 A
 V

 E
 R

   
B 

U
 I 

L 
D

 I 
N

 G
   

A 
P 

A 
R

 T
 M

 E
 N

 T
 S

83
 E

ve
ly

n 
Pl

ac
e

As
he

vi
lle

, N
or

th
 C

ar
ol

in
a 

28
80

1

SD SET:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

PROJECT NUMBER:

18-088

12.20.18

© COPYRIGHT 2018
WILSON ARCHITECTS

30
9 

ke
ni

lw
or

th
 ro

ad
, a

sh
ev

ille
, n

c 
28

80
3 

|  
82

8.
25

7.
49

30

FLOOR PLANS



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: Proposed CZD – 37 Brown 
Old College Dormitory 

Prepared February, 2019 

 
Sources:  
 

Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Zoning Analysis 
 
Density:  
 
Currently the parcel in question falls within the R-2 zoning district. The R-2 Zoning district does permit 
multifamily housing if certain variables can be found as established by the table of dimensional 
requirements. In short, a base land area of 7,500 square feet must be found with an additional 5,000 
square feet of minimum lot area (where public water and sewer is available) for each additional dwelling 
unit. The preliminary plat submitted in conjunction with the conditional zoning district application 
reports that the property consists of 1.918 acres which translates to 83,548 square feet. The amount of 
land present supports 16.2 units within the table of dimensional requirements with 16 units being 
applied for. 
 
However, when consulting the table of uses we find that multifamily dwellings with more than four units 
are not permissible within the R-2 zoning district, hence the conditional zoning district application. 
 
* This conflict of competing regulations is not lost on staff and has long been flagged for addressing * 
 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan Compliance 
 
When considering compliance with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), often the analysis 
begins with a consultation of the future land use map (Figure 3-6 on page 3-5). Here it is found that this 
property exists in a gap between the defined areas shown for the future uses of Downtown Core and 
Residential. These gaps are intentional and are addressed within the CLUP on page 3-2 as follows: 
 
“When reviewing the map, you will see that there are gaps between defined areas, and that the defined 
areas do not necessarily follow property boundaries. This is purposeful given the uncertainties that exist 
on the ground that cannot be accounted for, and in recognition of the need for flexibility. And so, the 
boundaries and gaps should be viewed as flexible rather than lines in the sand, and the final decisions on 
transitional land use types in these areas should be left to the good judgement of the appointed and 
elected officials that are charged with establishing development policy and regulations in the Town.” 
 
Given the aforementioned statement, it is the opinion of staff that the proposed rezoning would not 
conflict with the Town’s CLUP. 
 
 



From: Michele Wood
To: James Eller
Subject: Re: Planning & Zoning Board
Date: Thursday, January 31, 2019 9:13:17 AM

James,
Thank you for forwarding my letter below to the Planning and Zoning Board:

Attn: Weaverville Planning and Zoning Board

I understand the old Weaver College boys dormitory at 37 Brown Street is being sold to a
developer who plans to remodel this historic building into condos. 

As a nearby homeowner who frequently drives past this property and who appreciates the
heritage of this charming mountain town, I am thrilled to learn the buyer does not want to tear
down the building and rebuild on the lot. 

I support their plans to remodel the inside into condos while preserving the exterior of this
historic building and hope the Planning and Zoning Board will approve this use of this
property. 

Michele Wood
50 North College Street

On Jan 30, 2019, at 11:10 AM, James Eller <jeller@weavervillenc.org> wrote:

Ms. Wood,

I would be happy to forward your correspondence to the Planning and Zoning
Board. You may mail the letter to PO Box 338 or simply reply to this email and I
will ensure the message reaches its destination. Please feel free to contact me if I
may be of any assistance.

James W. Eller, NCAZO
Planning Director
Town of Weaverville

-----Original Message-----
From: Michele Wood [mailto:michele.wood@gmail.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, January 30, 2019 10:59 AM
To: James Eller
Subject: Planning & Zoning Board 

Good morning James,

Can you tell me how I should address a letter to the Planning & Zoning Board? If
I send it to you at Town Hall, will it reach the board? Thank you. 

mailto:michele.wood@gmail.com
mailto:JEller@weavervillenc.org
mailto:jeller@weavervillenc.org
mailto:michele.wood@gmail.com


Michele Wood

Sent from my iPad



 

Agenda Item 8 
Update of Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



INFORMATION SESSIONS

LAND USE

Planning Department
828-484-7002

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE
Contact the Town for more information or to schedule:

ORGANIZED GROUPS CAN REQUEST AN
   INFORMATION/INPUT SESSION FOR APRIL

AND WE WILL COME TO YOU

subdivisions

growth

residential

commercial
regional

maps

demographics

annexation

zoning
sidewalksstreets

industrial

developmentfuture

survey &

water

AND PUBLIC INPUT ON

local
Weaverville, NC

walkability

THURS MARCH 21 - 12 pm to 3 pm
TUES MARCH 26 - 5 pm to 8 pm
Community Room of Town Hall
30 South Main Street, Weaverville, NC


	P&Z Agenda for 3.5.19.pdf
	Agenda Item 3 Cover Page.pdf
	Planning and Zoning Minutes 1.3.19.pdf
	Agenda Item 4&5 Cover Page.pdf
	Rezoning Application and Map - Red Cole Drive.pdf
	SKM_C364e19021910241.pdf
	2019-02-19 09-02.pdf

	Red Cole Rezoning Staff Report.pdf
	Agenda Item 6&7 Cover Page.pdf
	37 Brown (Old College Dorm) CZD App.pdf
	Agent Authorizaton for Land Use Development - 37 Brown.pdf
	37 Brown CZD Staff Report.pdf
	Constituent Letter - 37 Brown.pdf
	Agenda Item 8 Cover Page.pdf
	Information Session - Flyer.pdf



